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To  
The Listing Department  
National Stock Exchange of India Limited  
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,  
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051  
 
NSE Code: BLUEPEBBLE  
 
Sub: Submission of Annual Report of the company for the financial year 2024-25 under regulation 
34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations)  
 
Dear Sir/Madam,  
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Please find enclosed herewith Annual Report of the Company along with the 
Notice of the 8th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and other Statutory Reports for the Financial 
Year 2024-25.  
 
The same is also being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ Depository Participants.  
 
The same is also available on the Company’s website, at https://www.bluepebble.in/  
 
Please take the above matters on your record. 
 
Thanking you.  
 
Yours Faithfully 

 
For Blue pebble Limited 

 
 
 
Renu Holani  
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Membership No. A25637 
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About the Annual Report 

 

This report has been meticulously created to demonstrate our advancements in integrated 

management, providing a concise summary of our overall performance throughout the 

reporting period. Its purpose is to enhance our stakeholder’s understanding of our current 

business position and future sustainability. 

The financial and statutory data in this report complies with the Companies Act, 2013 (including 

relevant rules) requirements, Accounting Standards, and the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Reaffirming our 

commitment to generating value for our stakeholders. It serves as a means to communicate the 

actions taken and outcomes achieved through our financial, environmental, and societal 

initiatives and accomplishments. 

The reporting period for this Annual Report spans from April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2025. This edition 

continues to provide clear and concise quantitative and qualitative disclosures. It highlights our efforts in 

value creation for our stakeholders and addresses the risks, opportunities, and mitigation plans in the 

context of a rapidly evolving external environment. 

We are delighted to present the 8th Annual Report of Blue Pebble Limited (“BPL”), offering a 

comprehensive overview of our financial and non-financial performance during the fiscal year 2024-25. 
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From the desk of the Chairman & Managing Director 

Dear Shareholders,  

Namaskar! 

I hope this letter finds you in good health and high spirits. As we gather here 

to reflect on the financial year 2024-25, I would like to take this opportunity 

to share with you some insights regarding the performance of our company 

and the prevailing conditions in the industries. 

Our Financial and operational execution delivered record revenue and robust 

margins for FY 24-25 

Revenue: - Rs 45.66 Crore in FY 24-25 

EBITDA Margins: - 13.99% 

PAT Margins: - 11.09% 

CAGR (FY 21-25): 81.9%  

The domestic market showcased robust growth, driven by growth in BPM/IT, BFSI, consulting and 

manufacturing industries. The demand for our Environment Branding Solutions remained strong, and we 

were able to capitalize on the opportunities presented by this favourable market environment. 

Additionally, our prudent financial management allowed us to navigate the challenges posed by rising 

input costs, ensuring a stable financial position for the company. 

Blue Pebble Continues to cement its leadership in design and strategic storytelling, earning recognition 

across top industry platforms and reinforcing our position as a trusted partner for innovative, high 

impact workplace experiences.   

In conclusion, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders and all other 

Stakeholders for their unwavering support and trust. I would also like to acknowledge our employees’ 

dedication and hard work, who have been instrumental in our success. 

Thank you once again for your valuable investment and belief in our company. 

Warm regards, 

 

Nalin Gagrani 

Chairman and Managing Director  
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A Small Brief of the Company 

 

Established in 2017, Blue Pebble Ltd specializes in the design of interior and exterior of corporate 

workspaces. They offer a range of services, starting from conceptualization, design, printing and 

furnishing, to the installation of vinyl graphics, signage and various furnishing products including 3D 

walls, frosted/clear glass films, artifacts, wall panels, wall murals, and sculptures. They also offer 

design consultancy and have expanded their offerings to include digital and immersive experience. 

Service offerings of the Company:-  
 

I.  Environmental Branding:- In Environmental branding, Blue Pebble meticulously examines the brand 
guidelines of their clients to design workspace interiors that resonate with the brand's identity and 
culture. Our work across the country which includes offices of FMCG major such as Nestle, to ITeS 
companies such as Google & Infosys to name a few reflects the gamut of their brand understanding and 
bringing the vision to life for creating workplaces of tomorrow.  
 

 

 
 
II. Custom Signage Solutions: We design customized signage solutions such as way finding, navigation 
and other as specified by the client which matches with interior/exterior design of the workspace. We 
also offer printing, and installation of both interior & exterior signages  
 
III. Wall Arts, Frames and Wall Mural: We have a team of designers who create bespoke artworks and 
also create premium artefacts. We work closely with their clients to achieve this.  
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IV. 3D Installations: We are specialized in the designing and installation of 3-D structures, ranging from 
sculptures and art pieces to architectural elements, which enhance the overall visual appeal of the 
space. For example: In the image below, we designed and installed 3D structures on the wall depicting 
Kanjivaram and Mysore sarees.  
 
V. Design Consultancy: We also provide design consultancy to their clients, in which we guide them in 
creating a functional workspace, developing brand guidelines and enhancement of overall workplace 
design and identity  
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VI. Digital and Immersive Experience: Through the Digital and Immersive experience service, our clients 
can connect with their customers deeply. For example: On the occasion of the opening of HSBC’s new 
branch in Bangalore, we made this immersive video for them.  
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Our Workflow Process:- 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Competitive Strength:- 

1. Established relationship with our customers 
2. Qualified and experienced management team 
3. Established relationship with material suppliers  
4. Designing and execution capability 
 
Our Business Strategies:- 

1.   Widening our customer base geographically  
2.    Retaining Skilled team 
3.    Reduction of operational costs and achieving efficiency 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

Indian Economy Overview and Outlook: -  

India is poised to be one of the swiftest expanding major economies globally in the upcoming 2025-26 

period, contributing a substantial 15% to the world's growth. This contribution is the second largest, 

surpassing the combined contributions of the United States and the European Union. The country's 

economic growth prospects are expected to benefit from a convergence of factors, including an increase 

in disposable income, readily available credit, and reduced interest rates as inflation stabilizes. 

Real Estate Industry: - 

 In India, the real estate sector is the second-highest employment generator, after the agriculture 
sector. 

 Real estate sector in India is expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030. By 2025, it will contribute 
13% to the country’s GDP. 
 

 

COMMERCIAL OFFICE MARKET OVERVIEW: - 

 

Office market has been driven mostly by growth in BPM/IT, BFSI, consulting and manufacturing 
industries. Moreover, many new companies are planning a foray into Indian market due to huge potential 
and relaxed FDI norms.  
 

According to a report by Anarock Research, Hyderabad outperformed Bengaluru with the greatest new 
office supply, adding nearly 14.94 million square feet of space, or 31% of the total supply in the top seven 
cities.  
 

 
HOSPITALITY MARKET TO WITNESS LARGE INCREMENTAL CAPACITY 

 

Scenario:-  

 NCR and Mumbai are by far the biggest hospitality markets in India, followed by Bengaluru, 
Hyderabad and Chennai. 

 Besides hotels, the hospitality market comprises of service apartments and convention centres. 
 
 

Opportunities and Threats:-  

 
India's rapid economic growth and urbanization create a significant demand for commercial spaces like 
offices, retail outlets, hotels, and restaurants, driving the need for Quality Environmental Branding 
Solutions, while the burgeoning startup ecosystem and small and medium enterprises (SMEs) increase 
the need for modern, ergonomic, and affordable office Solutions. Smart office Solutions with integrated 
technology solutions is becoming popular in commercial settings, providing an innovative market 
segment,  
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While there are lot of opportunities in the industry, it comes with an equal share of threats, our projects 
are exposed to various implementation and other risks and uncertainties such as time and cost overrun, 
which may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, Economic uncertainties or 
slowdowns can reduce investment in commercial infrastructure, directly impacting the demand.  
 
 
Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: - 

The Company is maintaining an efficient and effective system of Internal Financial Control for facilitating 
accurate compilation of financial statements. The company's Internal Control system is designed to 
ensure operational efficiency, protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in 
financial reporting and compliance with procedures, laws and regulations. The Company's Internal 
Control system commensurate with the nature of its business and the size of its operations. 
 
The Company is having Internal Audit Department to test the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal 
Control Systems laid down by the Management and suggests improvement in the systems. Internal Audit 
Reports are discussed with the Management. During the year, Company's Internal Controls were tested 
and no reportable weakness in the system was observed. The Audit Committee of the Company reviews 
and discuss the Internal Audit Reports in their meetings and all the significant audit observation and 
follow up action thereon are taken care of by the Audit Committee. 
 

Financial Snapshot: - 

    (All amounts in Rs. Lakhs) 

Key Financial Performance FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 

Total Income 4654.64 2217.32 1594.96 548.14 421.04 

Revenue from Operations (1) 4566.25 2206.27 1592.49 547.85 421.04 

EBITDA(2) 638.75 502.93 272.93 58.17 36.98 

EBITDA Margin (3) 13.99% 22.80% 17.14% 10.62% 8.78% 

Net Worth 2753.58 688.29 313.57 117.78 78.00 

PAT (4) 506.39 374.72 195.79 40.56 22.19 

PAT Margin (5) 11.09% 16.98% 12.29% 7.40% 5.27% 

RoE (%) (6) 18.39% 54.44% 62.44% 34.44% 28.45% 

RoCE (%) (7) 23.20% 73.07% 87.04% 49.39% 47.41% 
 

Public Listing and Fund Raising: - 

 On April 3, 2024, the Company listed its shares on the emerge Platform of the National Stock 
Exchange limited of India. 

 Raised Rs. 18,14,40,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crore Fourteen Lakh forty Thousand only) through an 
initial public offer providing a significant boost to the company's financial resources. 
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 This move not only provided significant capital Inflow but also increased the company’s visibility 
and creditability in the market. 

 

Analysis:- 

The Company's financial performance in 2024-25 shows a solid foundation with healthy liquidity and a 
balanced capital structure, while the robust net profit margin shows the company's profitability. The 
significant change such as the public listing are poised to drive future growth. The infusion of capital 
from the public listing will support expansion plans and technological upgrades will ultimately help in 
the enhancement of Printing Facilities, and improve efficiency and scalability. 
 
Future Outlook: 

The Company is well-positioned to leverage the growing opportunities in the Indian Commercial Office 
Spaces Design and Branding. By focusing on innovation, sustainable practices, and expanding its market 
presence, the Company can enhance its market share and profitability. Continued investment in 
technology, talent, and customer-centric strategies will be key to sustaining long-term growth and 
competitive advantage. 
 
Cautionary Statements:-  

Statements made in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's objectives, 
projections, estimates, expectations may be "Forward-looking statements" within the meaning of 
applicable laws & regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. Important 
factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include economic conditions affecting 
demand supply and price conditions in the domestic & overseas markets in which the Company operates, 
changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other statutes and other incidental factors. 
 
For and Behalf of Directors of Blue Pebble Limited  

 

 

 

 

Sd/-      Sd/- 

Nalin Gagrani                Manoj Bhushan Tiwari 

Managing Director & CEO  Whole Time Director & CFO 

DIN: 06981749    DIN:  00340671  
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Achievements at a glance 

 

• Gold Winner, Spatial Design Category, CII, Awards 2024.  

• Winner India 5000 Business Award 2024 

• Winner Visionary Entrepreneur of the Year 2024 

• Winner National Sales Awards, Graphics Portfolio  

• ‘India’s Best Design Studio’ 2023 by IBDA. 

• Trendsetter Architecture and Interior Design Award 2024 by Begin up Research Intelligence. 

• Best & Futuristic Design Agency for 2024 - National Edition award! 

• India’s best Design agency award 2025 
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NOTICE OF 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF BLUE 

PEBBLE LIMITED (CIN: L74999MH2017PLC299497) WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 AT 

2:30 P.M. IST THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”) / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) TO 

TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: 

 

 

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. ADOPTION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS: - 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 
Year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon; 
and 

 
2. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. MANOJ BHUSHAN TIWARI (DIN: 00340671), THE RETIRING DIRECTOR: 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari (DIN: 00340671), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.  

 
3. DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND  
          To declare a Final Dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. 
 

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution:  
 

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of resolution passed in this regard by the members of the 

Company at the Extra ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on October 31, 2024 and 

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 made  thereunder (including any amendment, statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force)  read  with  Schedule  V  of  the  Companies  Act,  

2013,  as  amended  vide  Notification  dated  September  12, 2016, applicable provisions of 

Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended and applicable clauses  of Articles of Association of the Company and based on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of 

Directors of the Company at their respective meeting, consent of the Members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded to revise the remuneration of Mr. Nalin Gagrani (DIN: 06981749), Chairman 

and Managing Director of the Company,  to overall aggregate amount not exceeding  INR 7,00,000 

(Rupees Seven Lakh) per month w.e.f. 1st April, 2025. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all other existing terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Nalin 

Gagrani, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company shall remain unchanged unless 

otherwise modified by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event that during any financial year, the Company has no profits 

or its profits are inadequate as computed under the applicable provisions of the Act, Mr. Nalin 

Gagrani, Chairman and Managing Director shall be entitled to receive the aforementioned 

remuneration as the minimum remuneration subject to receipt of requisite approvals, if any.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, any of the 

Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 

desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in the said regard.” 

 

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of resolution passed in this regard by the members of the 

Company at the Extra ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on October 31, 2024 and 

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 made  thereunder (including any amendment, statutory modification(s) or 

re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force)  read  with  Schedule  V  of  the  Companies  

Act,  2013,  as  amended  vide  Notification  dated  September  12, 2016, applicable provisions of 

Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended and applicable clauses  of Articles of Association of the Company and based on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of 

Directors of the Company at their respective meeting, consent of the Members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded to revise the remuneration of Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari (DIN: 00340671), 

Managing Director of the Company,  to overall aggregate amount not exceeding  INR 3,50,000 

(Rupees Three Lakh Fifty Thousand) per month w.e.f. 1st April, 2025. 

  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all other existing terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Manoj 

Bhushan Tiwari, Whole Time Director of the Company shall remain unchanged unless otherwise 

modified by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event that during any financial year, the Company has no profits 

or its profits are inadequate as computed under the applicable provisions of the Act, Mr. Manoj 
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Bhushan Tiwari, Whole Time Director shall be entitled to receive the aforementioned 

remuneration as the minimum remuneration subject to receipt of requisite approvals, if any.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, any of the 

Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 

desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in the said regard.” 

 
6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021, including any amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 
for the time being in force, the enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
of the Company and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be 
necessary, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the introduction and 
implementation of “BPL -  Employees Stock Option Plan 2025” (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Scheme” or ESOP-2025) and to create, offer, issue and grant at any time in one or more tranches, 
to such permanent employees of the Company, whether in or outside India, and to the Directors of 
the Company, whether whole-time or otherwise, except Independent Directors and Promoters 
(collectively “Eligible Employees”), such number of employee stock options, exercisable into not 
more than 204,000 equity shares of the Company, of face value of ₹ 10 each, fully paid-up, 
representing 5% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the date of approval of 
this resolution, on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which expression shall be 
deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or any other Committee which the 
Board has constituted or may constitute to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by 
this resolution). 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to devise, formulate, evolve, 
modify, alter, amend, suspend, withdraw, or terminate the Scheme, from time to time, subject to 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to issue and allot equity shares 
upon exercise of options from time to time in accordance with the Scheme, and such equity shares 
shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the equity shares of the Company are either sub-divided or 
consolidated, then the number of equity shares to be issued and allotted on exercise of Options 
granted under the ESOP-2025 and the exercise price of Options granted under the ESOP-2025 
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shall automatically stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the 
present face value of INR 10/-per equity share bears to their revised face value of the equity 
shares of the Company after such sub-division or consolidation, without affecting any other rights 
or obligations of the employees who have been granted Stock Options under the ESOP-2025. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall take necessary steps for listing of the Equity Shares 
allotted under the ESOP-2025 on the Stock Exchanges, where the Shares of the Company are 
listed in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI SBEB Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations 
and other applicable laws and regulations. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps, do all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution, including authorizing filing of necessary documents, 
returns with statutory authorities, and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in 
relation thereto.” 

 

 By Order of the Board of Directors of 

 of Blue Pebble Limited 
 
 
 
_______________ 

 RENU HOLANI 
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary 
Date: September 5, 2025 Membership No.: 25637 
  

Registered office:   

CIN: L74999MH2017PLC299497   

1701 and 1702 CABIN B, PLOT A-4, CTS 694, PENINSULA PARK 
NEAR CHITRALEKHA, OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI WEST , 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India - 400053 

 

  

Web-site: www.bluepebble.in  
E-mail: info@bluepebble.in 

 

Tel: +91 22-47516581   
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NOTES:  
General instructions for accessing and participating in the 8th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and 
voting through electronic means including remote e-Voting: 
 
1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular no. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 

read with MCA circulars no. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020 and 10/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 
2020, May 5, 2020 and December 28, 2022 respectively, read with SEBI circulars no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ 
POD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 and dated October 7, 2023 and May 
13, 2022 respectively (collectively, the “said Circulars”), allowed companies to hold shareholders 
meeting through video conferencing or other audio visual means (“VC/OAVM”) dispensing 
requirement of physical presence of members at a common venue, and other related matters with 
respect to such meetings. Accordingly, 8th AGM of the Company is held through VC in compliance 
with the provisions of the said Circulars, and consequently no attendance slip is enclosed with this 
notice. The deemed venue for AGM shall be the registered office of the Company. 
 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES, TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. However, 
since this AGM is held through VC, the facility for appointment of proxies is not available for this 
AGM, in terms of the said Circulars. Accordingly, no proxy form is enclosed with this notice.  

 

3. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/ Authorization 
etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote 
through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by 
email through its registered email address to dng.associates1@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
ivote@bigshareonline.com and info@bluepebble.in.  

 

4. Registers maintained under Section 170 and 189 shall be available for inspection by Members at the 
Registered Office of the Company during business hours between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. except on 
holidays, upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. Members seeking to inspect such documents 
can send an email to info@bluepebble.in in that regard. 

 

5. The particulars of the Directors proposed to be appointed/reappointed, as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed hereto. 

 

6. The physical copies of notice of 8th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 2024-25 shall be 
open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours between 11.00 
A.M. to 1.00 P.M. except on holidays, upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
 

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 
Wednesday, September 24, 2025 to Tuesday, September 30, 2025; both days inclusive. 
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8. In line with the said MCA Circulars, the notice of the 8th AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 
are being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered 
with the Company/ Depositories. Members may please note that this Notice and Annual Report 
2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website https://www.bluepebble.in websites of the 
Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively 
and is also available on the website of Bigshares Services Private Limited (agency for providing the 
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. https://ivote.bigshareonline.com. 

 
9. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the 

Company are requested to address their queries to the Investor Relations Department of the 
Company, at info@bluepebble.in at least 7 days before the date of the meeting (i.e. on or before 
Tuesday, September 23, 2025), to enable the Company to make available the required information at 
the meeting, to the extent practicable.  

 

10. All persons whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date namely Tuesday, September 23, 2025 
only shall be entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting by availing the facility of remote e-
voting or by voting at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

11. Members are requested to send all communications relating to shares and change of 
address, bank details, email address etc. to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the 
address: Bigshare Services Private Limited (Unit: Blue Pebble Limited) 1st Floor, Bharat Tin 
Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai. Tel. No. 
(+91) 22 6263 8200 Fax No. (+91) 22 6263 8280. If the shares are held in electronic form, 
then change of address and change in the Bank Accounts etc. should be furnished to their 
respective Depository Participants (DPs). 

 

12. The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a Final Dividend of Rs. 0.50/- 
(Rupees Fifty paise only at the rate of 5%) per Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 
(subject to deduction of tax, if any). Final dividend, once approved by the members in the 
AGM, will be paid to the eligible shareholders within the stipulated period of 30 days from 
the date of declaration at the AGM. 

 
13. The Company has fixed Monday, September 15, 2025 as the Record Date for determining the members 

entitled to receive final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, if approved and 
declared by the members at the AGM. All members of the Company holding shares as on the said Record 
Date will be eligible for the final dividend as per the list of beneficial owners to be furnished by 
NSDL/CDSL/RTA. The dividend distribution policy of the company has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company. The link of the same is https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations.html.  

 

14. SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated 
November 3, 2021 (subsequently amended by Circular Nos. 
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SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021, SEBI/HO/ 
MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 March 16, 2023 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-
1/P/CIR/2023/181 November 17,2023) has mandated that with effect from April 1, 2024, 
shareholders (including shareholders holding shares in physical form) shall be paid 
dividend only through electronic mode. Such payment shall be made only if the folio is KYC 
compliant. SEBI has also mandated that those members who have not updated their KYC 
details, shall be paid dividend electronically only after furnishing the PAN, choice of 
nomination, contact details including mobile number, bank account details and specimen 
signature by such shareholders. Therefore, members are requested to update the 
aforesaid details with the Company / RTA by Monday, September 15, 2025 for receiving 
dividend from the Company. 

 

15. Members may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, 
mandates that dividends paid or distributed by a Company are taxable in the hands of 
members. The Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source (“TDS”) at 
prescribed rates at the time of making the payment of dividend. In order to enable us to 
determine the applicable TDS rate, members are requested to submit the relevant 
documents on or before Saturday, September 20, 2025. The detailed communication 
regarding TDS on dividend sent to the members is provided on the link: 
www.bluepebble.co.in   

 

Kindly note that no documents in respect of TDS would be accepted from members after 
Saturday, September 20, 2025.  

 

 

E-VOTING 
 
i. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, Regulation 44(1) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with aforesaid circulars and 
Secretarial Standard 2, the Company is providing facility for e-voting to all members who are 
holding shares as on the cut-off date as per the applicable regulations and all the businesses 
contained in this Notice may be transacted through such voting. The facility of casting the votes by 
the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM, (“remote 
e-voting”) will be provided by Bigshares Services Private Limited. 
 

ii. Members are advised to update their mobile number and email id in their demat accounts in order 
to access e-voting facility. 
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iii. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e. either through Remote e-voting or by e-voting 
during the AGM. If a Member casts his/her vote using both the modes, then voting done through 
Remote e-voting shall prevail. 
 

iv. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, September 23, 2025. A person who is not 
a member as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for information purposes only. 

 

v. Mr. Nehil G. Dugar, Proprietor of M/s. DNG and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP 
No. 18952 and Membership No. ACS 51130) (email: dng.associates1@gmail.com) has been appointed 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize that the process of remote e-voting and e-voting at the Annual 
General Meeting happens in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

vi. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the General Meeting, first count 
the votes casted at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes casted through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall not later than 
two working days of the conclusion of the AGM, make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the 
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized 
by him, who shall countersign the same. 

 

vii. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
https://www.bluepebble.in and will be communicated to National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
who are required to place them on their website. The same shall also be placed on the website of 
Bigshares Services Private Limited. 

 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

i. The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Monday, September 29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

Bigshares Services Private Limited for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear 

in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 

Tuesday, September 23, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 

shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the cut-off date 

 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote 

at the meeting venue. 
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iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting 

facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been 

observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 

iv. Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 

listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 

multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

 

v. In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 

has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 

Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with 

the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 

convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

 

vi. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 

email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings 

for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi/Easiest    or visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 

on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my 

easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 

the user will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the e-Voting 

service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting 
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your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also 

links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 

website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, and 

also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

“Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
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site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected to i-

Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

    

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 

2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares 

in Demat mode & physical mode is given below: 

 

 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com   
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 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.                             

 

 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared 

separately on you register email id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit Client ID as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number 

registered with the Company as user id. 

 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered email id 

or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk 

section). 

 

 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  

 

NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting 

system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then 

they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click 

on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click 

on ‘Reset’. 

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 

registered e-mail address). 

 

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting page will appear. 

 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 

 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page. 

 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” 

and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else 

“CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you 

will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login 

any number of times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, 

it cannot be changed subsequently. 
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 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 

investor portal. 

 

3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 

 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting 

Platform. 

 Enter all required details and submit. 

 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent 

via email on your registered email id”. 

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and 

password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and further 

Click on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click 

on ‘RESET. 

(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered 

e-mail address). 

 

Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 

Investor Mapping: 

 

 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian 

portal. 

o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of attorney 

(POA). 

o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board 

resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the 

“InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

                Investor vote File Upload: 

 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian 

portal. 

 Select the Event under dropdown option. 

 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file 

under upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed 
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on the screen and also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is 

casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 

custodian portal. 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 

shareholders holding shares in Demat mode 

& Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries 

regarding E-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting 

module available at 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download 

section or you can email us to 

ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 

54 22. 

4. Procedure for joining the AGM through VC/ OAVM: 

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is 

given below: 

 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under 

Investor login by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the dropdown option. 

 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO 
CONFERENCE LINK” option. 

 Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under:- 

 

 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.  
 

 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
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Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 

 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the 

Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under 

download section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. 

  

 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors of 

 of Blue Pebble Limited 

 

  

  

_______________ 

 RENU HOLANI 

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary 

Date: September 5, 2025 Membership No.: 25637 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO. 4: 

 
Upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on 27th August, 2025 approved the revision in remuneration of Mr. 
Nalin Gagrani as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders at this Annual General Meeting.  

 
Main terms of revision of remuneration of Mr. Nalin Gagrani, Chairman and Managing Director: 

 
a)  Revision of Salary up to INR 7,00,000/- per month as approved by the Board w.e.f. 1st April, 2025. 

 
b)  Other terms and conditions as approved between the Company and Mr.  Nalin Gagrani, Chairman 
and Managing Director would remain the same except revision in remuneration components linked 
with basic salary. 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resolution in relation to revision of 
remuneration of Mr. Nalin Gagrani, Chairman and Managing Director for the approval by the 
shareholders of the Company. 

 
Disclosure required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is set out as the “Annexure-A” to this 
Notice. 

 
Except Mr. Nalin Gagrani, Chairman and Managing Director, Mrs. Karuna Gagrani, Director and their 
relatives, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this Resolution except to the extent of their 
shareholding. 
 
ITEM NO. 5: 
 
Upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on 27th August, 2025 approved the revision in remuneration of Mr. 
Manoj Bhushan Tiwari as Whole-Time Director of the Company, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders at this Annual General Meeting.  

 
Main terms of revision of remuneration of Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari, Whole-Time Director: 

 
a)  Revision of Salary up to INR 3,50,000/- per month as approved by the Board w.e.f. 1st April, 2025. 

 
b)  Other terms and conditions as approved between the Company and Mr.  Manoj Bhushan Tiwari, 
Whole-Time Director would remain the same except revision in remuneration components linked with 
basic salary. 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resolution in relation to revision of 
remuneration of Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari, Whole-Time Director for the approval by the shareholders 
of the Company. 
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Disclosure required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is set out as the “Annexure-A” to this 
Notice. 

 
Except Mr. Manoj Bhusan Tiwari, Whole-Time Director and their relatives, none of the Directors or Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise in this Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. 
 
ITEM NO. 6: 
 
Stock Options represent a reward system based on performance. They help companies attract, retain 
and motivate the best available talent. Stock Options also provide a company with an opportunity to 
optimise its personnel costs. This also provides an opportunity to employees to participate in the 
growth of the company, besides creating long term wealth in their hands.  

 
Further, as the business environment is becoming increasingly competitive, it is important to attract 
and retain qualified, talented and competent personnel in the Company. 

 
Keeping in line with the above, “BPL -  Employees Stock Option Plan 2025” (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Scheme” or “ESOP 2025’) has been formulated by the Company and to be implemented by 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee constituted under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”) issued by SEBI and other applicable laws. The 
Scheme has been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors at 
their Meeting held on August 27, 2025, subject to the approval of the members. 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company shall grant 
Options to employees based on the eligibility criteria and also determine the quantum of distribution 
of Options which could vary from employee to employee or any class thereof under ESOP 2025. 
 
As per provisions of Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee   Benefits   and   Sweat   Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI (SBEB and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations”), the Company seeks your approval for: 
 
(i)     Implementation of the ESOP 2025; and 
(ii)    Grant of Options to the eligible employees of the Company as per the terms of the ESOP 2025. 
 
Disclosure/main features of ESOP 2025 pursuant to the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021 and the Companies Act, 2013 are as under: 
 
A.   Brief description of ESOP 2025: 
 
The Company proposes to introduce the ESOP 2025 primarily with a view to:  
(i)   reward loyalty and performance of the employees; 
(ii)   provide wealth creation opportunities to the employees; 
(iii)  introduce a long-term incentive tool to attract, retain and motivate talent which shall contribute 
to the growth and profitability of Blue Pebble Limited; 
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(iv) enable the employees to get a share in value they create for the Company in the future. 
 
The ESOP 2025 contemplates grant of Options to the eligible employees as may be determined in due 
compliance of SEBI ((SBEB and Sweat Equity) Regulations. After vesting, the eligible employees earn 
a right (but not obligation) to exercise the vested Options within the predefined exercise period. 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall administer the ESOP 2025. All questions of 
interpretation of the ESOP 2025 shall be determined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and such determination shall be final and binding upon all persons having an interest in the ESOP 
2025. The Company shall issue equity shares upon exercise subject to payment of exercise price and 
satisfaction of consequential tax obligations. 
 
The liability of paying taxes if any, in respect of the Options granted pursuant to the ESOP 2025 and 
the equity shares issued pursuant to exercise of Options shall be on the Option grantee and/ or the 
Company. In cases where the Company decides to pay on behalf of the Option grantee it shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 read with rules issued thereunder and/or 
Income Tax Laws of respective countries as applicable to eligible Employees of Company working 
abroad, if any. 
 
The Company shall have the right to deduct from the Option grantee’s salary or recover any of the 
Option grantee’s tax obligations arising in connection with the transactions in respect of Options or 
Shares acquired upon the exercise thereof and shall have no obligation to deliver shares until the 
company’s tax deduction obligations, if any, have been satisfied by the option grantee in full. 
 
B.   Total number of Options to be offered and granted: 
 
The maximum number of Options that can be granted under the ESOP 2025 shall not exceed 204,000 
(Two Lakhs Four Thousand) which upon exercise shall be convertible into not more than 204,000 (Two 
Lakhs Four Thousand equity shares (“Shares”) of the Company of Rs. 10/- (Ten) each fully paid-up. 
 
Further, the SEBI (SBEB and Sweat Equity) Regulations require that in case of any corporate action(s) 
such as rights issue, bonus issue, merger and sale of division and others, a fair and reasonable 
adjustment needs to be made to the Options granted. In this regard, the Committee shall adjust the 
number and to the extent allow the price of the Options in such a manner that the total value of the 
Options remains the same after any such corporate action. Accordingly, if any additional Options are 
issued by the Company to the Option grantees for making such fair and reasonable adjustment, the 
ceiling of Options and shares aforesaid shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. 
 
C.   identification of classes of employees entitled to participate and be beneficiaries in ESOP 2025: 
Following classes of Employees are entitled to participate in ESOP 2025 
 
(i)  an employee as designated by the Company, who is exclusively working in India; or 
 
(ii)   a director of the Company, whether a whole-time director or not, including a non-executive 
director, who is not a promoter or member of the promoter group but excluding an independent 
director; but does not include: 
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  an employee/director who is a promoter or a person belonging to the promoter group; 
and 

  a director who either by himself /herself or through his/her relatives or through any body 
corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the 
Company. 

 
As per the eligibility criteria given above, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall identify 
the eligible employees for grant of Options, under the ESOP 2025. 
 
Nothing in the ESOP 2025 or in any Option granted pursuant to the ESOP 2025 shall confer on any 
employee or Option grantee any right to continue in the employment of the company or interfere in 
any way with the right of the Company to terminate the employee’s/Option grantee’s employment at 
any time. 

 
Requirement of vesting and period of vesting: 
 
Unless where determined otherwise by Nomination & Remuneration Committee, there shall be 
following categories of grants which would be applicable to eligible employees as decided by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, as the case may be, and which shall be final and binding on 
such eligible employee of an associate company, the vesting of Option will differ from that specified 
above and will be undertaken as per the provisions of the ESOP 2025. 
 
Options granted would vest essentially on the basis of continuation of employment/ service as on 
relevant date of vesting as a pre-requisite condition, provided that the eligible Employee is not under 
any notice of resignation or termination.  Besides continuity of employment/ service, the Committee 
shall have the power to determine and provide vesting conditions for the vesting of Options.  In the 
event that an eligible Employee is transferred or deputed or resigns to join any subsidiary prior to 
vesting, the vesting shall continue as per original vesting schedule/ conditions. 
 
E.    Maximum period within which the Options shall be vested 
 
The Options Granted under the Plan shall not Vest earlier than minimum Vesting Period of 1 (One) year 
and not later than maximum Vesting Period of 4 (Four) years from the respective date of grant. 
 
F.    Exercise price or pricing formula 
 
Exercise price shall be determined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at the time of grant of 
Options, provided however the exercise price per Option shall not be less than the par / face value of 
the Shares of the Company i.e. Rs. 10 (Ten) per Share and shall not exceed the price at which the Equity 
Shares of the Company were issued during its Initial Public Offering, i.e. Rs. 168 (One Hundred and Sixty-
Eight) per Share. 
 
G.   Exercise period and the process of exercise 
 
 The exercise period of Options shall be 2 (two) years from the date of their respective vesting. 

Failure to comply within this time period shall result in lapsing of vested Options in the hands of the 
option grantee. 
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 The ESOP 2025 envisages shorter exercise periods of the vested options, than that specified above 
in case of resignation or termination of employment for reasons other than misconduct. In case of 
termination due to misconduct, there shall not be any exercise period as all the vested Options 
shall lapse forthwith. 

 Once the Options are vested, whether at once or at various points of time as per the vesting 
schedule, the option grantee may, at any time during the exercise period submit an application with 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee requesting to exercise his/her vested Options and pay 
the exercise price. 

 
H.   Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of employees for the ESOP 2025 
 
The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the Employee will be determined by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee based on criteria such as the designation / grade of employee, 
length of service period, performance record, merit of the employee, future potential contribution 
towards strategic growth by the Employee, continuation of employment service and/ or any criteria that 
may be determined by the Committee from time to time. 
 
I.     Maximum number of Options to be offered and issued per employee and in aggregate under ESOP 
2025 
 
The maximum number of Options that may be granted under ESOP 2025 per eligible employee shall be 
determined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, subject to the provisions of SEBI (SBEB and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations which shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital (excluding outstanding 
warrants and conversions) of the Company as on the grant date, unless approved by the shareholders, 
specifically. 
 
J.    Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under ESOP 2025 
 
The maximum quantum of benefits underlying the options issued to an eligible employee shall be equal 
to difference between the option exercise price and the market price of the shares on the exercise date. 
 
K.     Implementation and administration of ESOP 2025 
 
The ESOP 2025 shall be implemented and administered directly by the Company and not by any Trust. 
 
L.     Source of acquisition of Shares under the ESOP 2025 
 
ESOP 2025 envisages issue of fresh / new Shares against exercise of vested Options. There will not be 
secondary acquisition of shares by the Company. 
 
M.    The amount of loan to be provided for implementation of the ESOP 2025 by the Company to the 
trust, its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc. 
 
This is currently not contemplated under the present ESOP 2025. 
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N.     Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition 
 
ESOP 2025 envisages issue of primary shares and there is no contemplation of secondary acquisition of 
shares. 
 
O.     Accounting Policy 
 
The Company shall follow disclosure requirements of the Accounting Standards prescribed by the 
Central Government in terms of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 including any 'Guidance Note on 
Accounting for employee share-based Payments' issued in that regard from time to time. 
 
P.     Method of Option Valuation 
 
The Company shall adopt Fair Value Method for valuation of Options as prescribed under applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards. The Company may choose to adopt a different methodology, as may be 
required, as per the applicable Indian accounting standards. 
 
Q.     Declaration: 
 
In case the company opts for expensing of share based employee benefits using the intrinsic value, the 
difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation cost 
that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value, shall be disclosed in the Directors' report 
and the impact of this difference on profits and on earnings per share ("EPS") of the company shall also 
be disclosed in the Directors' report. 
 
R.     Period of lock-in: 
 
The Shares issued pursuant to exercise of options shall not be subject to any lock-in period restriction 
except such restrictions as may be prescribed under applicable laws including that under the code of 
conduct framed, if any, by the Company under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, as amended. 
 
S.   Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities covered under these regulations. 
Subject to the provisions of the then prevailing applicable laws, the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee shall determine the procedure for buy-back of Options granted under the ESOP 2025 if to be 
undertaken at any time by the Company, and the applicable terms and conditions thereof. 
 
Consent of the Members is sought under SEBI (SBEB and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 by way of a 
Special resolution.  The resolution and the terms stated therein as also the terms stated in this 
explanatory statement herein above shall be subject to the guidelines/ regulations issued/to be issued 
by statutory authorities in that behalf and the Board (the NRC and/or Director(s) and/ or officer(s) of the 
Company, to whom any power may be delegated by the Board in this regard) under the applicable 
regulations / laws, shall have the sole and absolute authority to modify the terms herein above. 
 
A draft copy of ESOP 2025 shall be available for inspection at the Company’s Registered Office during 
official hours on all working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) till the date of 
passing of this resolution. 
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are 
concerned or interested in the resolutions, except to the extent of their entitlements determined 
lawfully, if any, under ESOP 2025. 

 

 By Order of the Board of Directors of 

 of Blue Pebble Limited 

 

 

 

_______________ 

 RENU HOLANI 

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary 

Date: September 5, 2025 Membership No.: 25637 

  

Registered office:   

CIN: L74999MH2017PLC299497   

1701 and 1702 CABIN B, PLOT A-4, CTS 694, PENINSULA PARK 

NEAR CHITRALEKHA, OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI WEST , 

Mumbai, Maharashtra, India - 400053 

 

  

Web-site: www.bluepebble.in  

E-mail: info@bluepebble.in 

 

Tel: +91 22-47516581   
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ANNEXURE-A: 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT  

The Statement of disclosures pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings and Regulation 36(3) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, is as under: 

Name  MANOJ BHUSHAN TIWARI 

Director Identification Number 00340671 

Designation Whole Time Director & CFO 

Date of Birth 03/06/1967 

Age 58 Years 

Date of Appointment on the Board  20-11-2023 
Qualification and Experience (specific 

functional area) 
Manoj Bhushan Tiwari, aged 58 is the Promoter, Whole Time Director 
of our Company. He is also appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company w.e.f October 26, 2023. He has completed his Bachelor of 
Science in Chemistry from DG Ruparel College of Arts and Science, 
Mumbai. He has work experience of around 30 years’ experience of 
Owning & Running a offset printing set up catering to Hi end 
Pharmaceutical companies. He has been entrusted with the 
responsibility to handle the Finance & Manufacturing of the Company. 

Terms and conditions of appointment 

or re-appointment An Executive Whole-time Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation. Remuneration fees as recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Members. 

Details of remuneration sought to be 

paid 

Remuneration last drawn (for FY 

2024-25) 122,500/- Per month 

Inter-se relationship between 

Directors and other Key Managerial 

Personnel 

NONE 
 

Directorship in other Companies 

(excluding foreign companies) 

NONE 
 

Membership of the committees of 
other Companies [includes Audit and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee] 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

No. of Shares/ options held in the 

Company 7,49,700 (18.38%) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Number of Board meetings 
held/attended  during the year 7/7 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

DEAR MEMBERS, 

 

The Directors present the 8th Annual Report (‘Report’) of Blue Pebble Limited (the ‘Company’) 
along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
COMPANY PERFORMANCE 
 
1. NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

The Company`s business is to provide a comprehensive range of services encompassing 
conceptualization, design, Printing, furnishing and installation of vinyl graphics, signage 
and different furnishing products, including but not limited to 3D Walls, frost/clear glass 
films, artifacts, wall panels, wall murals, sculptures for corporate interiors and exterior 
workplace environments. Companies Solutions are custom tailored to meet the unique 
requirements of each client.          
 

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
The Company's performance during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 as compared to 
the previous financial year is summarized below:  

                      (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone 
2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 4566.25 2206.27 

Other Income  88.39 11.05 
Total Income  4654.64 2217.32 
Expenses   
Purchase stock 2783.97 1029.87 
Changes in inventories  2.17 29.71 

Direct Expenses 230.84 145.05 
Employee benefits expense 368.46 263.38 
Finance costs - - 
Depreciation and amortization expense 50.46 13.23 
Other Expenses  542.06 235.33 

Total Expenses 3,977.96 1716.57 
Profit before tax 676.68 500.75 
Tax expense:   
Current Tax (Including current tax of 
earlier year) 

168.51 128.75 

Deferred Tax 1.78 (2.72) 
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period 506.39 374.72 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Face Value   
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of INR 2/- each)              
a)     Basic (in INR) 12.41 12.49 

b)     Diluted (in INR) 12.41 12.49 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 
 

During the year under review, Your Company’s revenue for FY 2024-25 was INR. 4566.25 
lakhs, higher by 106.97% over the previous year’s revenue of INR. 2206.27 Lakhs. The Profit 
after tax (PAT) for FY 2024-25 was INR. 506.39 lakhs, higher by 35.13% over the previous 
year’s PAT of INR. 374.72 Lakhs. 

 
4. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 

AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:  
 

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary, associate and 
joint venture company. 

 
5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profits after declaration 
of Dividend for Financial Year 2024-25 in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
6. DIVIDEND: 
 

The board of directors has recommended a Final Dividend of Rs. 0.50/- per Equity Shares of 
face value of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 20,40,000/-. 
 

7. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 
 
There was no revision of the financial statements of the Company during the year under 
review. 
 

8. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and 
implemented by the Company are adequate. The Company’s internal financial controls 
ensure the reliability of data and financial information, accuracy & completeness in 
maintaining accounting records and prevention & detection of frauds & errors. During the 
year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the 
Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on the inefficiency or 
inadequacy of such controls. 
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9. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS: 
 
Adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of the Company’s 
business, size and complexity of its operations are in place and have been operating 
satisfactorily. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures are designed 
to ensure reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement of operational 
and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedure, applicable laws and regulations. 
Internal control systems are designed to ensure that all assets and resources are acquired 
economically, used efficiently and adequately protected. 
 

10. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 
 
The financial statement of the Company for financial year 2024-25 have been prepared with 
accounting policies generally accepted in India (Indian GAAP). These financial statements 
have been prepared to comply in all material respects specified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as amended from time to time. 
 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 
 
Kindly refer the Notes forming part of financial statements for the loans, guarantees and 
investments given/made by the Company as on March 31, 2025. 

 
 
12. DEPOSITS FROM THE PUBLIC: 
 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount on 
account of principal or interest on deposits from the public was outstanding as on the date 
of the balance sheet. 
 

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:  
 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an 
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the company with related parties which may 
have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. However, as part of good 
corporate governance, the Company has taken prior omnibus approval of the Board is 
obtained on annual basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. 
Your Directors draw your attention to notes to the financial statements for detailed related 
party transactions entered during the year. Since all the related party transactions were 
entered by the Company in ordinary course of business and were in arm’s length basis, 
FORM AOC- 2 is not applicable to the Company. 
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14. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

There are no other subsequent events between the end of the financial year and the date of 
this report which have a material impact on the financials of the Company. 
 

15. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS: 
 

The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the year 
under review and hence no information as per provisions of Rule 4(4) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 
16. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 
 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and 
hence no information as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 
17. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME AND EMPLOYEE STOCK 

PURCHASE SCHEME 
 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors approved the formulation of an 
Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) titled “BPL -  Employees Stock Option Plan 2025” after 
the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. The objective of the Scheme is to attract, retain and 
motivate employees by providing them an opportunity to participate in the growth of the 
Company. 

Necessary disclosures as required under the applicable regulations have been made and 
are available on the Company’s website at www.bluepebble.in. 
 

18. DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF VOTING RIGHTS NOT DIRECTLY EXERCISED BY EMPLOYEES 
 

There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure 
under Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been 
furnished. 
  

19. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY  

During the year under review, the Registered Office of the Company was shifted within the 
local limits of the city from B-1201, Titanium Towers, Opp. Star Bazar, Nr. D. N. Nagar Metro 
Station Andheri (West), Mumbai MH 400053 to 1701 and 1702, Cabin B, Plot A-4, Peninsula 
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Park, Off. Veera Desai Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai 400053 with effect from 01st April 2024, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of the Companies Act, 2013. The change was 
approved by the Board and necessary filings were made with the Registrar of Companies. 

 
MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
The Board of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. 

 
 Appointment / Re-appointment 

 
During the financial year under review, In accordance with provisions of Section 152 of the 
Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari (Din 
00340671) (Whole-time Director), retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, 
have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 
 DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’), the Independent Directors have submitted declarations that each of them 
fulfills the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with the 
rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. There has 
been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the 
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors are competent, 
experienced, proficient and possess necessary expertise and integrity to discharge their 
duties and functions as Independent Directors. 

 
None of the Company’s directors are disqualified from being appointed as a Director as 
specified in Section 164 of the Act.  

 
During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no 
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other than receipt of sitting fees 
for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board and its committees. 
 

2. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
The Board of the Company comprises of following Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

SR.NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR & KEY 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

DESIGNATION DIN/PAN DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

1 NALIN GAGRANI  MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO 06981749 08-08-17 

2 MANOJ BHUSHAN TIWARI  WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO  00340671 20-11-23 
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3 KARUNA NALIN GAGRANI  NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 07591790 18-11-23 

4 AMIT M VORA  INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 07142205 08-09-17 

5 MADHUKAR RAMA RAO INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 10351332 18-11-23 

6 RENU HOLANI COMPANY SECRETARY  AFBPH8986A 03-04-25 

 

 
Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari (Din 00340671), retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being 
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment as per the provisions of the section 148 & 152 
Companies Act, 2013. The resolutions seeking shareholders’ approval for their re-
appointments forms part of the Notice. 

 
3. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors 
hereby confirms that: 

 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation and there were no material departures; 
b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and of the profit of the 
Company for that year; 

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) They have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;  
e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
4. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 
DISCLOSURE RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES 
 
1. BOARD MEETINGS 

 During the financial year 2024-25, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were held. The interval 
between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. 
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 The attendance of each of the Directors at the meeting of the Board Meeting during the 
year under review is as under: 

 
NAME AND DIN OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE 

YEAR 2024-25 

NALIN GAGRANI Managing Director & CEO 07 

MANOJ BHUSHAN TIWARI Whole time Director & CFO 07 

KARUNA NALIN GAGRANI Non Executive director  07 

AMIT M. VORA Independent Director  07 

MADHUKAR RAMA RAO Independent Director 07 

 
 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD  
 
 Audit Committee 

The primary role of the Audit Committee includes overseeing the financial reporting 
process, ensuring the accuracy and credibility of financial statements, reviewing the 
appointment and remuneration of auditors, monitoring related party transactions, and 
assessing internal controls and risk management systems. The Committee also 
scrutinizes inter-corporate loans, evaluates internal audit functions, and ensures 
compliance with legal requirements related to financial statements. The Company 
Secretary of the Company is also the secretary of the Audit Committee. 
 
The terms of reference in brief for Audit Committee can be accessed via: 
https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations/company-policies/   
 
The Audit Committee was constituted on 1st November 2023 since, there is no change in 
the Composition, following is the Composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2025: 
 

NAME OF THE COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS  

POSITION IN THE 
COMMITTE 

NO. OF MEETING 
ATTENDED 

NO. OF MEETING ENTITLED TO 
ATTEND  

Madhukar Rama Rao  Chairperson  2 2 

Amit Mahendra Vora  Member  2 2 

Nalin Gagrani  Member 2 2 
 

 
During the Financial Year, the Audit Committee meeting was held on 15.05.2024 and 
21.10.2024.  

 
 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) under the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
SEBI LODR, 2015. The NRC plays a critical role in shaping the governance and leadership 
structure of the company, ensuring that the right individuals are in key positions and that 
their compensation aligns with both company goals and regulatory standards.  The 
Company Secretary of the Company is also the secretary of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. 
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The terms of reference in brief for Nomination and Remuneration Committee can be 
accessed via: https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations/company-policies/     

 
The Policy of the Company on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other 
matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178. The Policy is available on the 
website of the Company: https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations/company-
policies/   

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on 1st November 2023 
since then there is no change in the Composition, following is the Composition of the 
Committee as on 31st March 2025: 

 
 

 

D
u
r
ing the Financial Year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting were held 
on 15.05.2024, 21.10.2024 and 19.03.2025.  

 
 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
Pursuant to the Act and SEBI LODR, 2015 the Stakeholder Relationship Committee was 
constituted on 1st November 2023 since then there is no change in the Composition, following 
is the Composition of the Committee as on 31st March 2025: 
 

 

 
 
 
The terms of reference in brief for Stakeholder Relationship Committee can be accessed via: 
https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations/company-policies/ 

 
This Committee specifically looks into the grievances of equity shareholders of the 
Company. 

 
During the Financial Year, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee meeting was held on 
28.03.2025. 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of the Directors  Position in the 
Committee 

No. of Meeting Attended No. of Meeting Entitled to   

Madhukar Rama Rao  Chairperson  3 3 

Amit Mahendra Vora  Member  3 3 

Nalin Gagrani  Member 3 3 

Name of the Directors  Position in the Committee No. of Meeting Attended No. of Meeting Entitled to   

Madhukar Rama Rao  Chairperson  1 1 

Amit Mahendra Vora  Member  1 1 

Nalin Gagrani  Member 1 1 



    

 

B L U E  P E B B L E  L I M I T E D         A n n u a l  R e p o r t - 2 0 2 4 - 2 5       P a g e  45 | 
100 

 

2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 

The Company has complied with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also framed CSR 
policy for undertaking and implementing CSR activities. The disclosure under Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is annexed with this report as Annexure I. The 
Company has constituted a CSR committee.  
 

3. INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE 
 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee (“ICC’’) as required under The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company is strongly 
opposed to sexual harassment and employees are made aware about the consequences of 
such acts and about the constitution of ICC. Neither were any complaints filed during FY 
2024-25 under the provisions of the said Act, nor were any complaints outstanding as at the 
beginning and end of the year under review. 

 
4. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES AND BOARD 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has formulated a Performance 
Evaluation Framework, under which the Committee has identified criteria upon which every 
Director, every Committee, and the Board as a whole shall be evaluated. During the year 
under review the evaluation of every Director, every Committee, and the Board has been 
carried out. 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company has put in place a Risk Management Policy which 
aims at enhancing shareholders’ value and providing an optimum risk-reward tradeoff. The 
risk management approach is based on a clear understanding of the variety of risks that 
the organization faces, disciplined risk monitoring and measurement and continuous risk 
assessment and mitigation measures. 

 
6. VIGIL MECHANISM FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 
 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has framed the “Whistle Blower Policy” as the vigil mechanism 
for Directors and employees of the Company. The Whistle Blower Policy is disclosed on the 
website of Company at https://www.bluepebble.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/vigil-
mechanism-whistle-blower-policy.pdf.  
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7. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 
 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been provided in 
Annexure II attached herewith and forms part of this Report.  

 
The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and 
the particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate exhibit which is available on the website of the 
Company at https://www.bluepebble.in  is available for inspection by the Members up to the 

date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
8. PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION/COMMISSION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FROM HOLDING OR 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 

None of the Managing Director, and the Whole Time Director of the Company are in receipt 
of remuneration/commission from any subsidiary company of the Company. The Company 
has no holding company. 

 
AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS 
 
1. STATUTORY AUDITOR AND STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

The Statutory Auditor’s Report for FY 2024-25 does not contain any qualifications, 
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers. 
 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under 
Section 143(12) of the Act, for the year under review. 

 
2. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and pursuant to Regulation 24A of 
Listing Regulations, the Company appointed a Practicing Company Secretary M/s. DNG & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, to undertake the Company’s Secretarial Audit. 

 
The report of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025 is attached to this report as Annexure III. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain 
any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers. 
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3. COST AUDITORS 
 

The company is not required to maintain the cost records by the Central Government under 
Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly such accounts and records are not 
required to be made and maintained. 

 
4. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL 
 

Mr. Chetan Rane, being the Internal Auditor of the Company have carried out internal audit 
of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, as per scope of work finalized with the Audit 
Committee. The findings of the Internal Auditors are discussed on an on-going basis in the 
meetings of the Audit Committee and corrective actions are taken as per the directions of 
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has accepted all the recommendations of the 
Internal Auditor. 

 
In respect of FY 2024-25, the Board, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
approved the appointment of Mr. Chetan Rane, as the Internal Auditors of the Company. 
 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
1. ANNUAL RETURN 
 

As per the requirements of Section 134(3)(a) read along with Section 92(3) of the Act and the 
rules framed thereunder, including any statutory modifications / amendments thereto for the 
time being in force, the Annual Return for FY 2024-25 is available on https://www.bluepebble.in  

 
2. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO 
 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of 
energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of 
activities undertaken by the Company during the year under review. 

 
The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review is as 
under: 

       
 

Particulars

 01 April 2024 to        

31 March 2025 

Amount in Lakhs 

 01 April 2023 to        

31 March 2024 

Amount in Lakhs 

Actula Foregin Exchnage eamings NILL NILL

Actula Foregin Exchnage outgo NILL NILL
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3. TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 
 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 
requires dividends that are not encashed/ claimed by the shareholders for a period of 
seven consecutive years, to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). In FY 2024-25, there was no amount due for transfer to IEPF. 
 

4. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE 
CLOSE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have 
occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. The Company 
continues to comply with all applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and other applicable laws. 
 

5. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL 
 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s 
operations in future. 

 
There are no proceedings initiated/pending against the Company under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Management Discussion 
and Analysis Report forms an integral part of this Integrated Annual Report.  

 
7. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING 
 

In compliance with the Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circulars issued from time to time, the 
Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025 has been separately furnished in the Annual Report and forms a part of the Annual 
Report. 
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8. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 
 
During the financial year under review, there were no instances of one-time settlement with 
any bank or financial institution. 
 

9. SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 
 

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and applicable law, all 
documents, including the Notice and Annual Report shall be sent through electronic 
transmission in respect of members whose email IDs are registered in their demat account 
or are otherwise provided by the member A member shall be entitled to request for 
physical copy of any such documents. 
 

10. CREDIT RATING 
 
During the period under review, there was no credit rating has been obtained by the 
Company. 

 
11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

The Directors thank the Company’s employees, customers, suppliers, bankers, business 
partners/associates, financial institutions and various regulatory authorities for their 
consistent support/encouragement to the Company.  

 
The Directors appreciate and value the contributions made by all our employees and their 
families for making the Company what it is. 
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The Directors would also like to thank the Members for reposing their confidence and faith 
in the Company and its Management. 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 of Blue Pebble Limited 
   

 
 NALIN GAGRANI MANOJ TIWARI 
Place: Mumbai Managing Director and 

CEO 
Whole-time Director and CFO 

Date: May 14, 2025 DIN: 06981749 DIN: 00340671 
   
Registered office:    
CIN: U74999MH2017PTC299497   
1701/1702 Peninsula Park, 
Veera Desai Industrial Estate, 
Fun Republic Road, Andheri West, 
Mumbai 400053 

 

Web-site: www.bluepebble.in  
E-mail: info@bluepebble.in   

 

Tel: +91 22-47516581  
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Directors’ Report 

Annexure I  

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

 

1. Brief outline of CSR Policy of the Company: 

 

A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs is as follows. 

 

The Company’s CSR policy has been framed in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules framed thereunder. The Primary purpose of the Company’s CSR policy is to make meaningful and 

sustainable impact in the lives of economically and socially challenged communities by supporting initiatives 

aimed at creating conditions suitable for sustainable livelihood in these communities. 

 

2. Composition of CSR Committee:  

Not applicable 

 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed 

on the website of the Company:  

 

https://www.bluepebble.in/investor-relations.html 

 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: 

 

Requirement of undertaking an impact assessment of CSR projects of the Company is not applicable.   

 

a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):   : INR 2,73,88,986/- 

b)   Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : INR 547,779.73/- 

 c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities  

of the previous financial years      : Nil  

 d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any  : Nil 

 e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].   : INR 547,779.73/- 
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a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) 

 

Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:  

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Sr. 

No. 

Name 

of the 

Project. 

Item 

from 

the 

list of 

activit

ies 

in 

Sche

dule 

VII 

to the 

Act 

Local 

area 

(Yes/

No). 

Location of the 

project. 

Proje

ct 

durat

ion. 

Amou

nt 

alloca

ted 

for 

the 

proje

ct 

(in 

Rs.) 

Amou

nt 

spent 

in 

the 

curre

nt 

financ

ial 

Year 

(in 

Rs.) 

Amoun

t 

transf

erred 

to 

Unspe

nt CSR 

Accou

nt for 

the 

project 

as per 

Sectio

n 

135(6) 

(in 

Rs.) 

Mode 

of 

Implem

enta 

tion - 

Direct 

(Yes/N

o) 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

State. District Name CSR 

Registra

tion 

Number 

1. Nil 

 

Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:  

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Project 

Item from 

the list of 

activities 

in 

Schedule 

VII to the 

Act. 

Local 

area 

(Yes/No) 

Location of the 

project 

Amou

nt 

spent 

for 

the 

projec

t (in 

Rs. 

lakhs) 

Mode of 

impleme

ntation 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

State District 
Direct 

(Yes/No) 
Name 

CSR 

Registrati

on 

number 

1. 

The Arya 

Foundation 

To support 

initiatives 

focused 

on 

healthcare 

and to 

Promote 

Education 

among 

 Yes Mahara

shtra, 

Rajast

han 

 Multiple 

districts 

750,0

00/- 

 

 No The 

Arya 

Founda

tion 
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children 

from 

underserv

ed 

communiti

es 

 

 

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil  

 

c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

 

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c): INR 7,50,000/- 

 

e)     CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:  

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year. 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as 

per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5) 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

7,50,000  N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 

f) Excess amount for set off, if any: 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as 

per section 135(5) 

547,779.73 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7,50,000 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 202,220.27 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 

or activities of the previous financial years, if any 

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 

years [(iii)-(iv)] 

N.A. 
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Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  

Sr. 

No.  

Preceding 

Financial 

Year. 

Amount 

transferred 

to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

section 135 

(6) 

(in Rs.) 

Balance 

Amount 

in 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

sub 

section 

(6) of 

section 

135 (in 

Rs.) 

Amount 

spent 

in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year 

(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to 

any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 

remaining 

to 

be spent in 

succeeding 

financial 

years. (in 

Rs.) 

Deficiency, 

if any 

Name 

of the 

Fund 

Amount 

(in Rs). 

Date of 

transfer 

1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 

spent in the Financial Year: No   

 

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 

through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).    

 

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).    : Not Applicable 

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.   : Not Applicable 

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under  

whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.   : Not Applicable 

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired  

(including complete address and location of the capital asset).   : Not Applicable 

 

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 

135(5). 

Not Applicable  
 

 

                                                                                                For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                                 of Blue Pebble Limited   

 

                                                               SD/-                                      SD/-  

                                                                NALIN GAGRANI                MANOJ TIWARI 

Place: Mumbai                                                 Managing Director and CEO       Whole-time Director and CFO 

Date: 14-05-2025                                         DIN: 06981749                 DIN: 00340671 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

ANNEXURE – II 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNEARTION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 

RULE (5)(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during 

the financial year 2024- 25 and the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year 2024 - 25 are as under: 

Sr. No 
Name of 

Director/KMP and 
Designation 

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 

Financial Year 2024-25 
(in Rs. Lakhs) 

% increase/decrease in 
Remuneration in the 

Financial Year 2024-25 

Ratio of remuneration of 
each Director/to median 

remuneration of 
employees 

1. Karun Gagrani 
Non-Executive 

Director 
N.A. N.A. N.A. 

2. Nalin Gagrani 
Managing Director 

41.00 26.83% 6.17 

3. Manoj B. Tiwari 
Whole-time Director 

& Chief Financial 
Officer 

14.70 50% 2.21 

4. Amit M. Vora 
Non-Executive 

Director 

N.A. N.A. N.A 

7. Madhukar R. Rao 
Non-Executive 

Director 

N.A. N.A. N.A 

9. Rupal Samdani# 
Company Secretary 

2.4 N.A. 0.36 

i.       Ms. Rupal Samdani, Company Secretary got resigned as Compliance officer of the Company w.e.f. April 1, 

2025; and 

ii. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was 6.65 Lakhs.      

             (Percentage increase of 14.65 %)  

iii. There were 49 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025; 

iv. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the key managerial       

              personnel in the financial year 2024-25 was 14.65% and average Increase in the managerial remuneration  

              w.r.t. Mr. Nalin Gagrani, Managing Director was 26.83% and 50%. 

v. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the  

             Company. 
 

                                                                                                 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                                 of Blue Pebble Limited   

                                                               SD/-                                      SD/-  

                                                                NALIN GAGRANI                MANOJ TIWARI 

Place: Mumbai                                                 Managing Director and CEO       Whole-time Director and CFO 

Date: 14-05-2025                                         DIN: 06981749                 DIN: 00340671  
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

ANNEXURE – III 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED  

1701 and 1702 CABIN B, PLOT A-4, CTS 694,  

PENINSULA PARK NEAR CHITRALEKHA,  

OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI (WEST),  

Mumbai, Maharashtra, India – 400053 

 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by Blue Pebble Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of records 

based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The 

Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of 

records. 

Due to the inherent limitations of audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable 

risk that some material misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is 

properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards.” 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 (hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable during the year under review). 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositaries and Participants) Regulations, 2018; (Not 

Applicable during the year under review). 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable during the year under review). 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not 

Applicable during the year under review). 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; (Not Applicable during the year under review). 

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021. (Not Applicable during the year under review). 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable during the year under review). 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent of securities issued; 

(Not Applicable during the year under review). 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

Applicable during the year under review). 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable 

during the period under review). 

(i) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector/Industry-specific laws that are applicable specifically to 

the company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE Limited. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Circulars, Notifications, Directions, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above: 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder and Secretarial Standards on 

Board Meetings, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

During the period under review, decisions were carried out with unanimous approval of the Board and no 

dissenting views were observed, while reviewing the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, circulars, 

notifications, directions and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the Company has not undertaken any event/action having a major 

bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, acts, rules, regulations, circulars, 

notifications, directions, guidelines, standards. 

 

For DNG & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries  

 

Sd/- 

Nehil G. Dugar 

Proprietor 

COP No. 18952 

M. No. 51130 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 3179/2023  

UDIN: A051130G001122079  

Date: May 14, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral part of 

this report. 
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Annexure-III 

To, 

The Members, 

BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED, 

1701 and 1702 CABIN B, PLOT A-4, CTS 694,  

PENINSULA PARK NEAR CHITRALEKHA,  

OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI (WEST),  

Mumbai, Maharashtra, India – 400053 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on my audit.  

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed 

provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company.  

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

the management. My examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

For DNG & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries  

 

 

Sd/- 

Nehil G. Dugar 

Proprietor 

COP No. 18952 

M. No. 51130 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 3179/2023  

UDIN: A051130G001122079  

Date: May 14, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members, 

BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED 

1701 and 1702 CABIN B, PLOT A-4, CTS 694,  

PENINSULA PARK NEAR CHITRALEKHA,  

OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI WEST,  

Mumbai, Maharashtra, India – 400053 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns, and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Blue Pebble Limited having CIN: L74999MH2017PLC299497 and having registered office at 1701 and 1702 CABIN B, 

PLOT A-4, CTS 694, PENINSULA PARK NEAR CHITRALEKHA, OFF VEERA DESAI RD, ANDHERI WEST, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra, India – 400053. (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before me by the Company for 

the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.  

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by 

the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below 

for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For DNG & ASSOCIATES 

Practicing Company Secretaries  

SD/- 

NEHIL G. DUGAR  

Proprietor 

COP No. 18952 

M. No. 51130 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 3179/2023  

UDIN: A051130G001122134  

Date: May 14, 2025 

Place: Mumbai  

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN Date of Appointment

1 Mr. Nalin Gagrani 06981 749 08-09-1 7

2 Mr. Manoj Bhushan Tiwari 00340671 20-1 1 -23

3 Mr. Amit M Vora 071 42205 1 8-1 1 -23

4 Ms. Karuna Nalin Gagrani 07591 790 08-09-1 7

5 Mr. Madhukar Rama Rao 1 0351 332 1 8-1 1 -23
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STANDALONE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED, 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED (“the Company”), 

which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of 

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial 

statements”).  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, 

and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 

addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We 

have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to 

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial 

Statements. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon. 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Board’s report including Annexure to Board’s but does not include the Standalone 

Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone 

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of 

the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and  
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 obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone 

Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the. 
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“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are 

in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as 

a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”, to this report. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed details regarding pending litigations in note 29 of the standalone financial 

statements, which would impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 

other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 

entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

v. The company has neither proposed any dividend in the previous year nor in the current year not paid 

any interim dividend during the year. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software 

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except 

that, the audit trail was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. For accounting 

software for which audit trail feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout 

the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any 

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. 

 

 

                                                                                                                          For, 

 M/s L K Ajmera & associates., 

                                                                                                                          Chartered Accountants, 

                                                                                                                          F.R.N.: 137051W 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                         CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera 

Place: Mumbai         Proprietor 

Date: 14-05-2025                                                           M No.: 156116 

UDIN: 25156116BMHGHQ6499 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE STANDALONE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 

account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

i.  

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment so to 

cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us by the 

management, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 

intangible assets during the year. 

d) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 

2025 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended 

in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of 

such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No 

discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or 

more in the aggregate for each class of inventory. 

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 

investments and providing guarantees and security, as applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits from the public during the year. Hence, clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

v. We are informed that the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (l) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the Company. 

Hence, clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods & Services Tax 

and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no 

undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods & 

Services Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more 

than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax or Sales 

tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax 

which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes and all past disputes have been 

resolved under the Maharashtra VAT Amnesty Scheme, 2022. 
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vii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, 

nor has it issued any debentures, as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company. 

ix.  

(a) The Company has raised moneys by way of initial public offer during the year. Accordingly, the 

provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are applicable to the Company. Company has not raised any 

fund through term loans 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

x.  

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 

during the year and up to the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints were received by the company for year ended 2023-24. 

xi. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

xii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect 

to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 

disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiii.  

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the 

nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the 

year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

xiv. In our opinion during the year the company has not entered  into any non-cash transactions with its Directors 

or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the companies Act, 2013 are not 

applicable to the company. 

xv.  

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 
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xvi. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

xvii. During the Year no change in statutory auditors of the company. 

xviii. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements and our knowledge of 

the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 

as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xix. In respect of ongoing projects, the company do not have any ongoing projects hence reporting under clause 

3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

                                                                                                                          For, 

 M/s L K Ajmera & associates 

                                                                                                                         Chartered Accountants, 

                                                                                                                          F.R.N.: 137051W 

 

                                                                                                                          CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera 

Place: Mumbai          Proprietor 

Date: 14-05-2025                                              M No.: 156116 

UDIN: 25156116BMHGHQ6499  
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE STANDALONE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(e) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even 

date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED (‘the Company’) as 

of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Act.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls and, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
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records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st 

March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financials Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 

                                                                                                                       For, 

                                                                                                                       M/s L K Ajmera & associates 

                                                                                                                       Chartered Accountants, 

                                                                                                                       F.R.N.: 137051W 

 

 

                                                                                                                      CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera 

Place: Mumbai                  Proprietor 

Date: 14-05-2025                 M No.: 156116 

UDIN: 25156116BMHGHQ6499 
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Standalone Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025                                                 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

 

 

  

Particulars
 

Notes

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

A Equity and liabilities

1 Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2 408.00             300.00             

Reserves and surplus 3 2,345.58          388.29             

2,753.58          688.29             

2 Non-current liabilities

Long-term provisions 4 16.95                16.71                 

Long term borrowing 5 -                  -                  

Deferred tax liability (net) -                  -                  

16.95                16.71                 

3 Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 6 -                  -                  

Trade payables 7 -                  -                  

 - Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 388.80             13.25                

 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and  small enterprises 133.39              175.66              

Other current liabilities 8 28.81                16.96                

Short-term provisions 9 247.15              133.45              

798.15              339.32             

Total 3,568.68          1,044.32           

B Assets

1 Non-current assets

Property, plant & equipment 10 510.24              47.67               

Deferred tax asset (net) 11 3.61                  5.38                 

Long-term Investments 12 5.68                 170.77              

Long-term loans and advances 13 90.99               58.00               

610.52              281.82              

2 Current assets

Inventories 14 73.29               75.46               

Trade receivables 15 1,251.09            435.79             

Cash and cash balances 16 1,244.52           98.43               

Short term loans & advances 17 1.92                  3.29                 

Other current assets 18 387.34             149.54             

2,958.16           762.50             

Total 3,568.68          1,044.32           

as per our Report of even date attached

For M/s L K Ajmera & associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED

CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera NALIN GAGRANI MANOJ TIWARI

M.No. 156116
 Managing  Director 
& CEO 

 Whole time 
Director & CFO 

FRN: 137051W DIN:- 06981749 DIN:- 00340671

UDIN : 25156116BMHGHQ6499
Place :- Mumbai
Date : 14-05-2025

RENU HOLANI            

 Company Secretary               
M.No.-ACS 25637 
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2025 

                                                                                                                                                                                (Rs. In Lakhs) 

                                                                                                                             

 

 

 

Year Ended

 

31 March 2025 

 

31 March 2024 

1 Income

Revenue from operations 19 4,566.25          2,206.27          

2 Other income 20 88.39               11.05                 

3 Total Income 4,654.64          2,217.32           

4 Expenses

Purchase cost 21 2,783.97          1,029.87           

Changes in inventories of stock 2.17                  29.71                

Direct Expense 22 230.84             145.05              

Employee benefits expense 23 368.46             263.38             

Finance costs 24 -                  -                  

Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 50.46               13.23                

Other expenses 26 542.06             235.33             

Total Expenses 3,977.96          1,716.57            

5 Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 676.68             500.75             

Exceptional / Exraordinary Items 27 -                  -                  

6 Profit before tax 676.68             500.75             

Less: Tax expense

Current tax 168.51               128.75              

Deferred tax 1.78                  (2.72)                

7 Total Tax Expense 170.29              126.03              

8 Profit for the Year/  Period 506.39             374.72             

9 Earning per equity share  (Face value of ₹ 10 each)  28

Basic 12.41                12.49                
Diluted 12.41                12.49                

as per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s L K Ajmera & associates For BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants 

CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera RENU HOLANI            NALIN GAGRANI MANOJ TIWARI

M.No. 156116
 Managing  Director 

& CEO 

 Whole time 

Director & CFO 

FRN: 137051W DIN:- 06981749 DIN:- 00340671

UDIN : 25156116BMHGHQ6499

Place :- Mumbai

Date : 14-05-2025

 Company Secretary               

M.No.-ACS 25637 

Year Ended

Particulars Notes
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

                                                                                                                                                                           (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

Sr. No. Particulars

 For the Year 

Ended 31 March 

2025 

 For the Year 

Ended 31 March 

2024 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax 676.68             500.75             

Adjustments

Depreciation and amortisation 50.46               13.23                

Finance Costs -                  -                  

Dividend Income -                  -                  

Profit on Sale of Machinery -                  1.27                  

Interest income (88.39)              (11.05)               

Total Adjustments (37.93)              3.45                 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 638.75             504.20             

Adjustment for Working Capital Changes

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (815.30)             57.24               

(Increase)/ Decrease in Stock in Trade 2.17                  29.71                

(Increase)/ Decrease Short Term in Loans and Advances 1.37                  4.26                 

(Increase)/ Decrease Other Current Assets (64.32)              37.18                

(Increase)/ Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances (32.99)              (56.00)              

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payable 333.28             (222.23)            

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 11.85                 (22.84)              

Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (54.81)              (70.01)               

Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 0.24                 7.67                 

(618.51)             (235.02)            

Cash generated from operations 20.24               269.18              

Taxes Paid 173.49              112.96               

Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (153.25)             156.22              

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES

Purchase & Sell of Property Plant and Equipment (513.04)            (10.19)               

Purchase of Investments -                  -                  

Sale of Investments -                  -                  

Purchase of Subsidiary -                  -                  

Investment in Fixed Deposit (MoreThan 3 Months)/ Non Cash & Cash Equivalent 165.09              (108.59)             

Interest Received 88.39               11.05                 

Dividend Received -                  -                  

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (259.56)            (107.73)             
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C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/ Repayment of Long Term Borrowing -                  (27.28)              

Proceeds/ Repayment of Short Term Borrowing -                  -                  

Issue of Share Capital 108.00              -                  

Receipt of Security Premium Account 1,706.40           -                  

Payment of Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax (255.50)            -                  

Payment of Share Application Money -                  

Interest Paid -                  -                  

Net cash flow used in financing activities © 1,558.90           (27.28)              

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,146.09            21.21                 

Cash and Cash Equivalent as at beginning of Year/ Period 98.43               77.22               

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of year/ Period 1,244.52           98.43               

as per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s L K Ajmera & associates For BLUE PEBBLE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants 

CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera RENU HOLANI            NALIN GAGRANI MANOJ TIWARI

M.No. 156116
 Company Secretary               

M.No.-ACS 25637 

 Managing  Director 

& CEO 

 Whole time 

Director & CFO 

FRN: 137051W DIN:- 06981749 DIN:- 00340671

UDIN : 25156116BMHGHQ6499

Place :- Mumbai

Date : 14-05-2025
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Significant Accounting Policies: 

The preparation of standalone financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP, requires the management to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates 

are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 

assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles in India (GAAP) and comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013.  

b) Historical Cost Convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of 

previous year.  

c) Use of estimates 

All items of PPE are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes 

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost includes its purchase price 

including non-refundable taxes and duties, directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present 

location and condition and initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

site on which it is located. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of PPE or recognised as a separate PPE, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 

charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

d) Depreciation 

The Company depreciates its PPE over the useful life in the manner prescribed under Part C of Schedule II 

to the Act. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use and is computed on 

pro-rata basis from the date of installation/ acquisition till the date of sale/ disposal. Management believes 

that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

e) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined using the FIFO 

method. 

Cost is ascertained as, 

 

f) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 

measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts, returns and rebates 

taking into account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

government. 

i) Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to customer as 

per the terms of contract. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding 

recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the possible return of goods 

ii) Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the 

applicable effective interest rate. 

iii) Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment 

have been established. 

iv) Income from Service rendered is recognised based on the terms of the agreements as and when 

services are rendered and are net of Goods and Service Tax (GST)/Service Tax. 

g) Investments 

Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date 

on which such investments are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are 

classified as long-term investments. And Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair market 

value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are stated at cost less 

provision for diminution other than temporary in the value of such investments. 

h) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of 

funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. 

 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and 

a) Raw Material, Packing Material & Stores and 
Spares

At cost, on FIFO/ weighted average basis.

b) Finished goods At cost, plus appropriate production overheads if applicable.

c) Material in Process At Cost, plus appropriate production overheads.
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial 

period of time to get ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 

which they are incurred. 

i) Employee benefits  

Provision for employee benefits including gratuity in respect of employees is accounted for on the basis of 

liability estimated by the management. 

(i) Short-term Obligations  

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly 

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are 

recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the 

amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(ii) Post-employment Obligations  

The Company operates the following post-employment scheme:  

(a) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity): The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of 

defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 

period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuarial Value 

j) Accounting for taxes on income 

i) Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year as per 

the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing difference, being the 

difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are 

capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and measured using relevant enacted tax rates. 

 

k) Operating lease 

A. Where Co is lessee 

Lease of assets under which all the risk and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor 

are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense 

on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements. 

B.Where Co is lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an 

asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight 

line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

l) Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction 

dates. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange 

rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

m) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to 

existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares). Diluted earnings per 

share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 

charges to expense or income (net off any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, 

by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the 

weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. 

n) Provisions 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates 

are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

o) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control 

of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, 

where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company 

does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the 

probability of outflow of resources is remote.  

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. If the inflow of economic benefits is 

probable, then it is disclosed in the financial statements. 

p) Impairment of property, plant and equipment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of assets to determine whether 

there is an indication that those assets have suffered impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. The  
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and value in use, determined by discounting the 

estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset to their present value. 

q) Current and Non-Current Classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal 

operating cycle (Twelve months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

r) Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and in hand 

and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 

s) Research and Development 

Revenue expenditure on research is expensed under respective heads of account in the period in which it 

is incurred. Capital expenditure is shown as addition to fixed assets. 

t) Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash 

Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the 

Company. Cash and cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on hand and 

demand deposits with banks. 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 2 Share Capital  

2.1 Authorised, Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up                                                                                                 (Rs. In Lakhs)                                                                                                                

                                                                                           

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:     

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. The holders of the Equity 

Shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their 

share holding at the meetings of shareholders. 

2.2 The Reconciliation of the No Of Shares Outstanding is Set out below 

 

*  The Company Got Listed on 3rd April 2024 on NSE Emerge Platform. 

 

 

 

Particulars

Number Rs. in lakhs Number Rs. in lakhs

Share Capital

Authorised share capital (Refer note below)

Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each 50,00,000        500.00             50,00,000        500.00             

50,00,000        500.00             50,00,000        500.00             

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each 40,80,000        408.00             30,00,000        300.00             

40,80,000        408.00             30,00,000        300.00             

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Particulars

Number Rs. in lakhs Number Rs. in lakhs

 Opening balance 30,00,000        300.00             10,000              1.00                   

 Add: Equity Shares Issued by way of Bonus During the Year* - - 29,90,000        299.00             

 Add: Equity Shares Issued Public 10,80,000         108.00              -                   -                   

Closing balance 40,80,000        408.00             30,00,000        300.00             

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

2.3. The details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the company:                                  (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

2.4. Disclosure of Promoters Holding: 

 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 

vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.  In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders 

are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to 

their shareholding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of the Shareholders

No. of Shares 

held

% of Holding No. of Shares 

held

% of Holding 

Manoj Tiwari 7,49,700          18.38% 7,49,700          25%

Nalin Gagrani 22,49,800        55.14% 22,49,800        75%

29,99,500        74% 29,99,500        100%

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Name of the Shareholders

No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding 

 Manoj Tiwari 7,49,700          18.38% 7,49,700          24.99%

 Nalin Gagrani 22,49,800        55.14% 22,49,800        74.99%

 Anjita Tiwari  100.00              0.0033% 100                    0.0033%

 Karuna gagrani 100.00              0.0033% 100                    0.0033%

 Sanjay Tiwari 100.00              0.0033% 100                    0.0033%

 Shlok Gagrani                100.00 0.0033%                      100 0.0033%

 Sudhir Tiwari 100.00              0.0033% 100                    0.0033%

 As at 

31 March 2024 

 As at 

31 March 2025 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 3 Reserves & Surplus                                                                                                                                  (Rs. In lakhs) 

 

Note: 4 Long-term provisions                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 

Note: 5 Long-term Borrowings                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                              

Note: 6 Short-term borrowings                                                                                                                            

Particulars 
 As at  

31 March 2025  
 As at  

31 March 2024  

      

Secured     

                                 -                                   -    

Unsecured     

      

Total                                 -                                   -    

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year 388.29 312.57

Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 506.39 374.72

Add: Security Premium 1706.40

Less: Issue of Bonus Shares 255.50 299.00

Balance at the end of the year 2345.58 388.29

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Provision for Defined Benefit Obligation 16.95                                   16.71                                    

Total 16.95                                   16.71                                    

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Secured

-                                      -                                      

Unsecured

Loans & advances from related party -                                      -                                      

Total -                                      -                                      
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 7 Trade payables 

Ageing of Trade Payable Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 is as follows:                              (Rs. In Lakhs)                             

                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Ageing of Trade Payable Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 is as follows: 

 

7.1. There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding as at 31st March 

2025. The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006, has been  

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. There 

is no interest paid or payable during the year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Particulars Not Due

Less than 1 

Year
 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

 More than 

3 Years 
Total

Trade Payables

MSME 387.47 1.33              -               -               388.80         

Others 133.39          -               -               -               133.39          

Disputed Dues - MSME -               -               -               -               -               

Disputed Dues - Others -               -               -               -               -               

Total 520.86 1.33 -               -               522.19          

Outstanding for following period from due date of 

payment
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Note: 8 Other current liabilities 
                                                                                                                                                                (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 9 Short term Provision                                                                                                                  

 

Note: 10 Fixed Assets                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

 

 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Other payables

Audit fees 1.80 1.80

Other current liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable 18.70 8.35

Advance received from Client 5.21                                      -                                      

Salary Payable 3.10 6.20

Electricity Payable 0.60

Total 28.81 16.96

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Provision for taxation 168.51 128.75

Provision for Defined Benefit Obligation 3.19 3.35

Professional Fees Payable 0.45 1.35

Provision for Expense 75.00

Total 247.15 133.45

Name of Assets Cost as on Additions Deductions/ Total Cost Upto Deductions/ For the Total Upto W.D.V. W.D.V. 

1-04-2024 during the Transfer as on 31-03-2024 Transfer year 31-03-2025 as on as on

year during the year 31-03-2025 during the year 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Plant & Machinery 42.62                       288.28                    -                          330.90                    11.86                         -                          18.84                        30.69                       300.21                     30.76                       

Office Equipment 5.59                         9.57                         -                          15.16                         3.58                         -                          1.78                          5.36                         9.79                         2.01                          

Computer 32.23                       59.84                       -                          92.07                       22.59                       -                          28.65                       51.23                        40.84                       9.64                         

Furniture & Fixture 4.37                         2.12                          -                          6.49                         0.05                         -                          1.19                           1.25                          5.24                         4.32                         

Trade Marks 0.95                         -                          -                          0.95                         -                          -                          -                          -                          0.95                         0.95                         

Software Development 

expenses -                          153.22                     -                          153.22                     -                          -                          -                          -                          153.22                     -                          

CURRENT YEAR 85.76                       513.03                     -                          598.79                    38.08                       -                          50.46                       88.53                       510.24                     47.67                       

PREVIOUS YEAR 85.47                       13.69                        13.40                        85.76                       33.49                       8.64                         13.23                        38.08                       47.67                       51.97                        

   G R O S S   B L O C K D E P R E C I A T I O N   N E T   B L O C K
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Note: 11 Deferred tax asset (net)                                                                                                                         (Rs. In lakhs)                             

 

Note: 12 Long Term Investments                                                                                                                           

Particulars 
 As at  

31 March 2025  
 As at  

31 March 2024  

      

Fixed Deposits 5.68 170.77 

      

Total 5.68 170.77 

 

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note 13: Long Term Loans & Advances                                                                                                                   

 

 

Note 14:  Inventories   

                                                                                                                             

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5.38 2.66

Fiscal Allowances on Fixed Assets 0.00 0.29

Other timing Difference 1.77 2.43

(-)/(+) for the year ended 1.77 2.72

Balance as at the end of the year 3.61 5.38

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Rent Deposits 90.99 58.00

Total 90.99 58.00

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Raw Material 73.29 75.46

Work In Progress -                                      -                                      

Finished Goods and Stock in Trade -                                      -                                      

Total 73.29 75.46
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 15 Trade receivables 

Ageing of Trade Receivables Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 is as follows:                           (Rs. In Lakhs)                                                    

 

Ageing of Trade Receivables Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 is as follows: 

 

Note: 16 Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                                     

 

16.1. Balances with Banks includes balances in Operative and Non Operative Accounts. 

Particulars Not Due

Less than 6 

month 6- 1 Years  1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

 More than 

3 Years 
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered 

good 925.54 296.02 29.53 -               -               1251.09

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which  have 

significant increase in credit risk -               -               -               -               -               -               

Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -               -               -               -               -               -               

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -               -               -               -               -               -               

Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk -               -               -               -               -               -               

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total 925.54 296.02 29.53 -               -               1251.09

Outstanding for following periods from Date of Transaction

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Balances with Banks 1238.66 96.80

Cash in hand 5.86 1.63

Balance with fixed deposits -                                      -                                      

Total 1244.52 98.43
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 17 Short-term loans & advances                                                                                                              (Rs. In Lakhs)                   

 

Note: 18 Other current assets                                                                                                                         

 

Note: 19 Revenue From Operation 

Note: 20 Other Income 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Others

Short Term Loans & Advances 1.92 3.29

Advance Against Salary -                                      -                                      

Total 1.92 3.29

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

GST Credit 92.85 0.18

TDS & TCS Receivable 118.49 52.96

Advance Tax Paid 55.00 60.00

Advance to Vendors 86.96 9.32

Prepaid expenses 34.04 10.82

Share Issues Expenses 16.25

Total 387.34 149.54

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Sale of Products & Services

Design, Supply and Installation of Material 4,566.25                             2,206.27                             

Revenue from operations 4,566.25                             2,206.27                             

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Interest Income-Others  -                                      -                                      

Interest on FD 88.36 11.05

Interest on income Tax Refund 0.03                                     -                                      

Total 88.39                                  11.05                                    
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements           

Note: 21 Purchase cost                                                                                                                                        (Rs. In Lakhs)                                                                            

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-PROCESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE  

Note: 22 Direct Expense  

 

Note: 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES              

                                                                                             

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Purchase of Raw material 2783.97 1029.87

Total 2783.97 1029.87

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Inventories (At Close)

Goods 75.46 105.17

Inventories (At Commencement)

Goods 73.29 75.46

Total 2.17 29.71

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Design Charges 100.60 62.65

Site Expenses 47.60 22.88

Electricity Charges 10.27 4.25

Labour Charges 61.00 55.26

Factory rent 11.37

Total 230.84 145.05

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Salaries & Wages 310.3 216.35

Directors Remuneration 55.70 37.35

Other Employee Benefits 2.37                                     -                                      

Staff welfare Expenses -                                      0.02

Gratuity Expenses 0.09 9.66

Total 368.46 263.38
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements                       

Note: 24 Finance Cost                                                                                                                                           (Rs. In lakhs)         

Particulars 
 As at  

31 March 2025 
 As at  

31 March 2024  

      

                                 -                                   -    

Total                                 -                                   -    

 

Note: 25 Depreciation & amortization                                                                                                                  

 

Note: 26 Other expenses                                                                                                                                   

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Depreciation (Refer Note No 10) 50.46 13.23

Total 50.46 13.23

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Audit Fees 2.00 2.00

Bank Charges 1.27 0.16

Business Promotion Expenses 21.01 17.89

Courier Charges 25.82 28.12

Insurance Charges 11.40 16.77

Internet & Telephone charges 1.47 0.83

Transport charge 11.89 9.38

Commission Expenses 12.58 0.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.63 2.70

Repairs & maintenance 2.65 0.95

Office Expenses 24.81 13.19

Photoshoot Expenses 9.76 6.01

Petrol & Diesel Expenses 2.97 2.29

Professional Fees 180.01 39.41

Rent Charges 111.93 21.39

Water Expenses 0.10 0.46

Travelling Expenses 54.69 40.95

Image Expenses 4.62 4.71

Printing and Stationery Expenses 0.47 1.72
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements                                                                                    (Rs. In Lakhs) 

         

Note: 27 Extraordinary items                                                                                                                              

Particulars 
 As at  

31 March 2025  
 As at  

31 March 2024  

      

                                 -                                   -    

      

Total                                 -                                   -    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CSR Expense 7.50 0.00

Bad debts 3.85 0.00

Accommodation Exp (Lodging) 8.44 6.69

Professional Tax 0.00 0.08

Software Expenses 0.13 1.24

Website & Domain Charges 0.62 0.43

Loss on Sale of FA 0.00 1.27

Interest on late Payment of TDS 0.10 0.11

Exhibition Expenses 0.00 10.33

Food Expense office/Site 7.43 6.20

Legal Expenses 0.00 0.07

Advertisement Expenses 17.80 -                                      

AMC Services 0.18 -                                      

Depository and Registrar Charges 0.98 -                                      

Director Sitting Fees 2.50 -                                      

Statutory Expenses 7.30 -                                      

Market Maker Fees 5.00 -                                      

Membership & Subscription 0.13 -                                      

Total 542.06 235.33
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Note: 28 Earning per share (EPS) 

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the 

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. The following reflects the profit and number of 

shares used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:                                                                       

                                                                                                                              

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note 29: Related Party Disclosures    

In accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard (AS) -18 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the 

related parties where control exists and /or with whom transactions have taken place during the year in the or during 

the course of business, as identified and certified by the management are: 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Net Profit attributable to equtiy shareholders 506.39 374.72

Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning 

Per Share (Basic) 40,80,000                          30,00,000                          

Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning 

Per Share (Diluted) 40,80,000                          30,00,000                          

Earning Per Share Basic 12.41                                    12.49                                   

Diluted 12.41 12.49

Face Value 10                                         10                                         

Particulars Nature of Relationship
W hole Time Director & CFO

Managing Director & CEO

W ife of Mr. Manoj Tiwari

Brother of Mr. Manoj Tiwari

Brother of Mr. Manoj Tiwari

W ife of Mr. Nalin Gagrani

Son of Mr. Nalin Gagrani

Proprietorship Firm of Mr. Manoj 

Tiwari

Mr. Shlok Gagrani Holds 50%  in 

Partnership Firm.

Relatives of KMP

Anjita Tiwari

Sanjay Tiwari

Sudhir Tiwari

Karuna Gagrani

Shlok Gagrani

Enterprises in which KMP/Relatives of KMP 

can exercise significant influence

Rensun Pharmaceuticals Private 

Limited 

Mr. Sanjay Tiwari Holds 50%  

Shares

Bright Image

The Plant Origins

Names of related parties

Manoj Tiwari
Directors and Key Management Personnel 

(KMP) Nalin Gagrani
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The following transactions were carried out with the related parties and the balances of these related parties as at 31st 

March, 2025 for the period then ended are presented herein below 

 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Director's Remuneration

Nalin Gagrani 41.00 30.00

Manoj Tiwari 14.70 7.35

Remuneration To Other Related Parties

Shlok Gagrani 15.15 16.80

Anjita Tiwari 3.00 7.35

Purchase of Goods

Bright Image (Properitor-Manoj Tiwari) 0.18 0.06

Sale of Goods

Bright Image (Properitor-Manoj Tiwari) 5.15

Loan outstanding

Manoj Tiwari -                                      -                                      

Nalin Gagrani -                                      -                                      

Total Loan Outstanding -                                      -                                      
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements                                                                         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Note: 30 Auditor remuneration 

 

Note: 31 Expenditure in foreign currency 

 

 
 

Note 32: Analytical Ratios  

     

The Ratios as on 31st March 2025 are as follows:      

 

 
 

 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Statutory audit fees 2.00 2.00

Total 2.00 2.00

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Revenue Expenditure 4.62 4.71

Total 4.62 4.71

Numerator Denominator Ratio Numerator Denominator Ratio % Variance

a) Current ratio 2,958             798                3.71               762                339                2.25               65%

b) Debt-Equity ratio 2754 0 688.29 0 -                 

c) Debt service coverage ratio

d) Net profit ratio * 506                4,566             0.11 375                2,206             0.17 -35%

e) Return on capital employed * 677                2,754             0.25 501                688                0.73 -66%

f) Return on investment * 88                  6                    15.66 11                  171                0.06 9%

g) Return on equity ratio * 506                41                  12.41 375                30                  12.49 -1%

h) Inventory turnover ratio 3,017             74                  40.56 1,205             90                  13.34 204%

i) Trade receivables turnover ratio 4,566             843                5.41 2,206             464                4.75 14%

j) Trade payables turnover ratio 2,784             356                7.83 1,030             293                3.51 123%

k) Net capital turnover ratio 4,566             1,292             3.54 2,206             327                6.74 -48%

Not Applicable

Ratio 
FY. 2023-24FY. 2024-25
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements  

Note 33: Contingent Liabilities 

 

Note 34: Employee Benefits  

We have used the actuarial assumptions provided by the Company. 

The Company is notified that the assumptions need to be set up based on paragraphs 73 - 91 of AS15 (Revised 2005). 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

The principal financial & demographic assumptions used in the valuation are as follows:     

 

 

As on the date of balance sheet, the estimated term of liabilities works out to 5.23 years and the corresponding g-sec 

yield is considered as discount rate for the valuation 

 

 

 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Claim against company not acknowledged as debts

 in respect of Income Tax -                                      -                                      

in respect of Other Income Tax

Total -                                      -                                      

Financial Assumptions
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Discount Rate (p.a.) * 6.50% 7.10%

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.)

10.00% for the first two 

years & 7.00% 

thereafter

10.00% for the first two 

years & 7.00% 

thereafter

Expected Return on Assets (p.a.) N.A. N.A.

Demographic Assumptions
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Ult. IALM (2012-14) Ult.

Attrition Rate (p.a.) 20.00% 20.00%

Retirement Age (in years) 58.00                                  58.00                                  
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements  

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation: 

 
 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period 

 

 

 

 

 

Change in Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation during 

the Period

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 20,05,706                          10,40,121                             

Current Service Cost 7,46,851                              3,32,772                             

Interest Cost 1,83,540                              95,239                                

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - -

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (9,21,713)                             5,37,574                             

Acquisition/Divestiture - -

Benefits Paid - -

Past Service Cost - -

Exchange differences on foreign plans - -

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments - -

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - -

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 20,14,384                           20,05,706                          

Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Current Service Cost 7,46,851                              3,32,772                             

Interest on Obligation 1,83,540                              95,239                                

Expected Return on Plan Assets - -

Past Service Cost - -

Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) (9,21,713)                             5,37,574                             

Effect of limit in para 59(b) - -

(Gains)/Losses due to Settlements/Curtailments

Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit Expense" 8,678                                  9,65,585                             

Actual Return on Plan Assets
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 
 

Details of amount recognized in the Balance Sheet: 

 
 

Note 35: Operating Leases       

Where company is the lessee:    

The company has taken various godown and units under operating lease, that are renewable on a periodic basis at the 

option of both the lessor and the lessee.    

Lease payment recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss for the period: 

Particulars 
 As at  

31 March 2025  
 As at  

31 March 2024  

 Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss     
     Gala Rent 48.47 12.17 

  Office Rent 74.83 9.21 

Future minimum lease payments not later than one year* 
                           

-   
                           

-   

Future minimum lease payments later than one year but not later than five years*     
 

*Lease Agreements are to be renewed as per agreement.  

 

 

 

 

Amounts Recognized in Balance Sheet

 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Present Value of funded obligations - -

Fair value of plan Assets - -

Present Value of unfunded obligations 20,14,384                           20,05,706                          

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit) - -

Unrecognised Asset : Para 59(B) Limit - -

Net Liability 20,14,384                           20,05,706                          

Amounts in the Balance Sheet

Liabilities 20,14,384                           20,05,706                          

Assets - -

Current / Non-Current bifurcation

Current Liability 3,19,759                              3,34,965                             

Non Current Liability 16,94,625                           16,70,741                            
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

Note 36: Segment Reporting 

The Company’s operating segments are identified in accordance with the criteria set out in Accounting Standard 17-

Segment Reporting. 

The Company has identified the following reportable segments: 

• Segment A: Digital Promotions and Advertising Activities  

• Segment B: Environmental Branding, Design and Build. 

Any other business operations not qualifying as reportable segments are shown under “Others.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PARTICULARS  As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

(I) SEGMENT REVENUE

(a) Digital Promotions and Advertising Activities 700.99                                -                                      

(b) Enviornmental Branding, Design and Build 3,865.25                             2,206.27                             

Total 4,566.25                             2,206.27                             

Less:- Inter-Segment -                                      -                                      

Total Revenue from operations 4,566.25                             2,206.27                             

(II) SEGMENT RESULT/PROFIT

(a) Digital Promotions and Advertising Activities 22.47                                  -                                      

(b) Enviornmental Branding, Design and Build 565.82                                489.70                                

Total 588.28                                489.70                                

Less: Finance Costs -                                      -                                      

Less: Amortisation of ROU assets -                                      -                                      

Add: Unallocable Income 88.39                                  11.05                                    

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 676.68                                500.75                                

Add/(Less): Exceptional Items -                                      -                                      

(III) Profit Before tax 676.68                                500.75                                
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

  

   

  

Note 37: Other Regulatory Disclosures    

a. The Company has not traded in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year. 

b. The Company is not declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders. 

c. The Company has no transactions with the struck off Companies under Section 248 or 560 of the Act. 

d. No proceedings were initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. 

e. There are no ultimate beneficiaries to whom the Company has lent/invested nor received any fund during the 

year within the meaning of Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and Prevention of money Laundering Act 

2002. 

f. The Company has complied related to number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the 

Companies Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

g. There we no transaction in the Company which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

h. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of 

Companies beyond the statutory period. 

i. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding 

Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or  

PARTICULARS  As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

(I) SEGMENT ASSETS

(a) Digital Promotions and Advertising Activities -                                      -                                      

(b) Enviornmental Branding, Design and Build 3,568.68                             1,044.32                              

Less:- Inter Company Eliminations

Add:- Unallocated Assets

Total Assets 3,568.68                             1,044.32                              

(II) SEGMENT LIABILITIES

(a) Digital Promotions and Advertising Activities -                                      -                                      

(b) Enviornmental Branding, Design and Build 815.09                                 356.03                                

Less:- Inter Company Eliminations

Add:- Unallocated Liabilities

Total Liabilities 815.09                                 356.03                                
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements  

 

j. indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

k. The details pursuant to provisions of schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 have been given to the extent 

applicable to the company 

l. Micro and Small Enterprises: Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) 

certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. The Company has 

not received any information from the "suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

m. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to this years' 

classification 

As per our report of even date   

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  

Blue Pebble Limited 

For M/s L K Ajmera & associates  
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WTD & CFO. 
(DIN - 00340671) 

 

   CA Lalit Kumar Ajmera    
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    Nalin Gagrani  Renu Holani 
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DISCLAIMER    

This presentation or any other documentation or information (or any part thereof) delivered or supplied should not be 

deemed to constitute prospectus or placement memorandum or an o-er to acquire any securities. No representation or 

warranty, express or implied is made as to, and no reliance should be placed on, the fairness, accuracy, completeness 

or correctness of such information or opinions contained herein. The information contained in this presentation is only 

current as of its date. This presentation contains statements that contain “forward looking statements” including, but 

without limitation, statements relating to the implementation of strategic initiatives, and other statements relating Blue 

Pebble Ltd.  future business developments and economic performance. While these forward looking statements indicate 

our assessment and future expectations concerning the development of our business, a number of risks, uncertainties 

and other unknown factors could cause actual developments and results to differ materially from our expectations. 

These factors include, but are not limited to, general market, macro-economic, governmental and regulatory trends, 

movements in currency exchange and interest rates, competitive pressures, technological developments, changes in the 

financial conditions of third parties dealing with us, legislative developments, and other key factors that could affect our 

business and financial performance. We undertake no obligation to publicly revise any forward looking statements to 

reflect future / likely events or circumstances. This presentation cannot be copied and disseminated in any manner. No 

person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained in and not consistent with this 

presentation and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been 

authorized by or on behalf of Blue Pebble Ltd. 
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